
1 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West__________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Meeting Minutes 

Victoria NSW Interconnector West 

Meeting title: VNI West CCG  Date: 3 July 2025 

Location: Wanganella Hall Time: 10:00am – 1:00pm 

Attendees: Chairperson: Brendan Blakeley 

VNI West Project Team - Transgrid 

Colin Mayer Project Director 

Nathan Menser A/Community and Stakeholder Engagement Manager 

Paul McFadyen Community and Stakeholder Engagement Lead 

Geoff Hudson Environment Manager 

Aaron Atkinson Indigenous Engagement and Access Officer 

Ben Fraser Community and Stakeholder Coordinator 

Invited Guests 

Jarryd Barton WSP, Environmental Planner 

Matilda Hartwig Policy Manager, EnergyCo 

CCG Members 

Beck Hayward Murray River Council 

Mick Lalor  NSW National Parks and Wildlife Service 

Donald Bull Landholder 

Roger Knight Western Murray Land Improvement Group 

Gary Stoll Murrumbidgee Council 

Bruce Rollinson  Landholder 

Colin Bull Landholder 

Jeanette Crew (alt. for David Crew) Yarkuwa Indigenous Knowledge Centre 

Tracey Hamilton (alt. for David Crew) Yarkuwa Indigenous Knowledge Centre 

Apologies 

Trevor Clark Yanco Creek and Tributaries Advisory Council 

Alison Glenn NSW Farmers, Bunnaloo Branch 

Sarah Ryan Murray River Council  

David Crew Yarkuwa Indigenous Knowledge Centre 

Shannon Sampson Community member 

Michael Chalmers Ricegrowers Association – Wakool Branch 

Peter O’Shannassy  NSW Local Land Services - Murray 

Maisie Moore Wamba Wamba Local Aboriginal Land Council 

Haydon Love Cummeragunja Local Aboriginal Land Council 

Rose Dunn Deniliquin Local Aboriginal Land Council 

John Kerr Moama Local Aboriginal Land Council 

Mark Dalzell  Edward River Council 

Ben Doran Land and Property Manager 



 

2 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West__________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Acknowledgment of Country 

On behalf of the group, Brendan Blakeley acknowledged the Wamba Wamba and Barappa Barappa/Pereppa 

Pereppa, Traditional Owners of Wanganella and its surrounding areas. 

Meeting proceedings 

Agenda item Summary notes 

1. Welcome, introductions 
and housekeeping and 
review of previous 
minutes 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and attendees introduced 
themselves. 

On behalf of the CCG, the Chair expressed thanks for Peter O’Shannassy’s 
contributions to the group. Transgrid was advised that Peter would be moving 
from Local Land Services – Murray into retirement.  

The Chair reviewed action items and minutes from previous meeting were 
accepted. 

In response to ‘Biodiversity offsets’, tabled at Meeting 09: 

Roger Knight (RK) advised he is working with the NSW government on a 
landscape program called the Primary Industry Program, which provides farms 
$10,000 to do a carbon assessment using the environmental planning method. 
While carbon storage (sequestration) could reach 1,300 – 1,400 tonnes per 
year, the current Australian Carbon Credit Unit (ACCU) pricing of $35 makes 
sequestration unviable for most property owners. Past audits by Conservancy 
Australia and Mulloon Institute showed biodiversity agreements could increase 
land value.  

Geoff Hudson (GH) noted Transgrid have done a hydrology assessment at the 
Concord property to ensure the stewardship agreement assesses the baseline 
soil conditions, salinity and irrigation channels to fix any hydrology issues for the 
replanting and locking away of paddocks. GH also clarified that carbon 
sequestration is distinct from biodiversity offsets. Transgrid is discussing local 
regeneration opportunities and property purchases to meet offset requirements.  

RK raised concerns that none of the $580 million spent on biodiversity offsets 
has reached the Murray catchment region (data available from the NSW 
Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water 
(DCCEEW)). RK suggested that Transgrid should proactively present carbon 
credit and stewardship opportunities to communities.  

GH noted that offset funds can be split between government and market 
purchases, with the latter often being more cost-effective. Regarding carbon 
credits on properties, the Biodiversity Assessment Method Calculator (BAM-C) is 
used to estimate carbon credits. 

ACTION: Transgrid to investigate whether a mechanism exists to direct 
biodiversity offsets funds to a specific region.   

RK explained that for the last 5 years, they were told these biodiversity credit 
and offset programs would become available in the local area and there are lots 
of renewable energy projects in our area. How do we bring community projects 
into that process? 

Matilda Hartwig (MH) advised that each developer has responsibility for its own 
biodiversity offset scheme program. MH will also speak with DCCEEW 
colleagues to seek clarity on regional funding insights from government.  

RK noted the carbon sequestration program is complex and voluntary, with 
paperwork and commitment being major barriers for farmers. He recommended 
Transgrid engage directly with communities to simplify participation.  



 

3 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West__________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Summary notes 

GH noted a segment on Landline about carbon offsets and ACCUs [“Carbon 
Special”, 2021]: https://iview.abc.net.au/video/RF2004Q039S00. 

In response to question on ‘water usage’, tabled at Meeting 09 

RK asked if there will be restrictions on irrigators during peak water use for the 
project? 

GH clarified that the project will not impose restrictions on irrigators and 
emphasised the project’s water usage is minimal compared to agricultural 
irrigation.  

RK responded by noting capacity constraints in some small irrigation channels, 
which limit environmental water delivery. RK also compared the 1.85GL required 
for the project to his past experience of managing a cheese plant (1.8GL is 
about half the water used through an entire year).  

GH noted that 1.8GL is the estimate for the whole project, with the water being 
sourced from potable supplies (Council, other suppliers), not irrigation channels. 
The water will be recycled where possible. The Environmental Impact Statement 
(EIS) will provide further detail on water use – with the primary use being the 
batching process.  

Jarryd Barton (JB) noted the water strategy is described in Chapter 3 of the EIS 
- Project description, and is assessed in the EIS technical papers.  

Garry Stoll (GS) asked if the estimated water includes the water used at the 
camps as well.   

JB confirmed it does include the water for construction camps and temporary 
workforce accommodation.  

In response to ‘Stakeholder Engagement’, tabled at Meeting 09: 

Nathan Menser (NM) outlined the stakeholder engagement carried out by the 
project, highlighting key stakeholder groups and organisations engaged 
throughout the past three years.  

In response to ‘Photomontages’, tabled at Meeting 09: 

NM shared photos of the EnergyConnect project, showing the appearance of the 
transmission line corridor.  

Colin Bull (CB) asked whether the whole 70-metre easement will be cleared.   

Colin Mayer (CM) responded that during operation, vegetation can be 
maintained underneath transmission lines up to about four metres.  

CB noted that with the Boree Woodland, which is very thick, they assume you 
clear the full 70-metre-wide easement to construct the project.  

CM responded that wires can be dragged over the top of trees, so it does not 
need to be fully cleared.  

In response to ‘Recap of CCG’, tabled at Meeting 09: 

NM presented a recap of activity since CCG inception, including areas where the 
CCG has influenced discussion and action by Transgrid.  

In response, Donald Bull (DB) noted he would like to see more discussion on 
bushfire risk at the CCGs.  

Further, BR sought clarity on the interfaces between VNI West, EnergyCo and 
SW REZ proponents, and asked whether there could be council and community 
representatives as part of this group.  

https://iview.abc.net.au/video/RF2004Q039S00


 

4 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West__________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Summary notes 

NM responded that this group is focused on coordination between energy 
projects in and around the SW REZ, ensuring that timing of engagement activity 
is managed and social legacy / community investment opportunities are 
discussed, with a view to collaboration across organisations.  

MH added that should the renewable projects be approved, they will be required 
to convene a community consultative committee (CCC). There is initial 
discussion between the renewable projects and Transgrid on the potential to at 
times have combined CCC meetings across projects, where it may make sense 
to do so. EnergyCo sees value in bringing different CCCs together at times for 
increased coordination across the project region, and reduced consultation 
fatigue. 

The Chair summarised that this CCG convened by Transgrid for the VNI West 
project is a voluntary pre-lodgement process. A CCC is likely to be convened 
subject to project determination (Ministerial Condition of Approval). The CCCs 
have set guidelines on membership and meeting frequency and would consider 
construction impacts and then operational impacts.  

BR asked of the membership for the CCCs.  

The Chair noted that there are generally open seats for about seven community 
members, typically up to three individual community members with the balance 
from representatives of community organisations including relevant Local 
Aboriginal Land Councils (LALCs). There is also a place for all local councils. 
The Chair noted there are provisions for these CCCs to have combined 
meetings at times to discuss more regional based issues. 

MH explained that more information on CCCs will be available in the future, 
when projects reach planning determination milestones, as only one project has 
its approval (Yanco Delta Wind Farm).  

NM explained that when establishing this VNI West CCG, Transgrid were 
thinking about future requirements. The current CCG functions similarly to a 
post-approval CCC, having similar membership representation. Transgrid saw 
value in establishing the CCG in this way, to build relationships early and seek 
consistent community input throughout route selection and EIS development.  

2. What are you hearing? The Chair asked CCG members where they think the CCG has been effective 
and where they think it could be doing more.  

BR noted that three projects are proposed along McLennons Bore Road, raising 
concerns among local landholders and residents about increased traffic and 
potential disruptions to farming during construction. While Origin Energy is 
executing its project in one stage, the other three proponents have opted for 
staged construction. Given the Origin project is twice the size of the other 
projects, BR suggested Transgrid consider asking Origin to stage their project. 
This gesture would be appreciated by the community as a way to help manage 
traffic impacts.  

BR raised concern about the community benefits and social legacy program, 
noting that a landholder along a transmission line boundary is not receiving 
compensation, but their neighbour will. He asked if neighbouring properties 
could be included in the social legacy program, rather than funding projects and 
initiatives outside of the project corridor.  

BR noted that in the previous meeting, Transgrid explained how the whole 
network functions, and found this to be very useful in understanding. He asked 
whether something could be put on YouTube or the project website so residents 
in the area can see how the whole network functions. He suggested this should 
include a focus on the broader transmission network beyond VNI West.  



 

5 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West__________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Summary notes 

ACTION: Transgrid to develop broader communications material on the overall 
functioning of the electricity network and the how Transgrid’s major transmission 
projects fit into it.   

CB noted that landholders are frustrated by how slowly things are moving on 
their properties. In particular, he noted that landholders want more information 
on view impacts and sightlines. He asked why Transgrid cannot peg out where 
the towers may be on an landowners property so they can see where it is 
located rather than reading a map.  

ACTION: Transgrid to consider opportunities to indicate proposed tower 
locations to landholders. 

CB noted concern around property management plans (PMPs), and the 
apparent lack of clarity around where the transmission line will be located on 
individual properties. He noted some frustration among landowners, particularly 
farmers, with the uncertainty influencing how to start considering compensation 
claims. As an example, biodiversity offsets: if a property owner is losing 2000 
trees, that offset should be on their property.   

GH confirmed there have been ongoing individual conversations with property 
owners about the potential for localised offsets. Some landowner properties are 
looking as though there will be viable offsets.   

CB referenced news from Victoria that due to significant backlash, the 
government appears to be providing larger compensation offers to landowners. 
He asked why Victorians are getting more compensation than NSW landowners, 
given it is the same VNI West project.  

CM confirmed that on Monday June 30, Transmission Company Victoria (TCV) 
announced a two-year delay to the construction of the transmission line in 
Victoria. While Victoria has announced a delay, it does not impact on Transgrid’s 
ability to complete work related to the EIS exhibition and approvals, the property 
negotiations and work at Dinawan substation that will facilitate connections from 
the South West REZ.  

CM noted Transgrid will continue engaging with property owners to get PMPs in 
place and easements acquired. CM acknowledged concerns about the potential 
difference in offers for the land, however noted that Transgrid are following the 
Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991 of the NSW Government. 
How the easement negotiations are undertaken in Victoria remains a matter for 
the Victorian Government and its process. CM noted his surprise about the 
confusion about the location of the transmission line on properties, as Transgrid 
has released detailed maps to landholders which include information such as 
access tracks and where the transmission line is proposed. He offered to talk to 
CB about where the misunderstanding is about the transmission line location.   

CB noted compensation payment should be received up front, as landowners 
will be impacted as soon as construction starts.  

CB noted that roads and telecommunications remain the biggest issues. He 
noted the greatest impacted community is landholders, with the direct impacts 
on their property. He encouraged a focus on social legacy spend on landholders 
as most regional communities (aside from Moulamein) are not impacted. 

BR emphasised that Transgrid should proactively coordinate with local Councils 
to ensure roads are upgraded to meet construction standards. He highlighted 
the importance of a clear plan for road improvements and noted that there is an 
opportunity for Transgrid to create a positive social legacy by leaving behind 
better roads as a tangible community benefit for those living along the corridor.  



 

6 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West__________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Summary notes 

CB noted that one neighbour was approached three times for a laydown area on 
his property, with the latest request placing the laydown area opposite CBs front 
gate – resulting in a new impact on farming operations for CB. CB asked why 
this person keeps getting approached when they have already said no to 
Transgrid.  

ACTION: Transgrid to review approach taken with landholder regarding 
construction compound.  

CB noted that Transgrid and other renewable energy proponents need to work 
together on roads and telecommunications so the communities. He emphasised 
the need to prioritise the hosting landholders and their neighbours as the most 
directly impacted communities. He noted Transgrid need to be proactive rather 
than reactive and upgrade the roads before the project starts.  

GS emphasised that roads and telecommunications are the two biggest issues. 
He noted that Murrumbidgee Council are trying to fix some initial errors they 
made relating to roads. He explained they have had a commitment through 
EnergyCo that Transport for NSW will put actions in place to address the 
community impacts of development. EnergyCo are also doing a 
telecommunications study to identify problems and propose solutions.  

MH responded by affirming that EnergyCo is aware of the infrastructure 
challenges and is actively engaging with developers to understand their 
proposals. EnergyCo is also reviewing project EISs to get a wholistic 
understanding of generator commitments and whether there are coordination 
opportunities to improve outcomes. Regarding telecommunications, EnergyCo is 
undertaking a REZ-wide study to understand the current opportunities and 
constraints across the local telecommunications networks. EnergyCo is also 
engaging with Transgrid, Telstra and the Telco Authority. 

EnergyCo will consult on its community and employment benefit program later 
this year, and if feedback shows that there is community support for 
telecommunication legacy projects, EnergyCo could use funds to support this 
work.     

CB noted that landholders already know what the issues are and have been 
telling Telstra just give us a good tower where that exchange is.  

GS agreed that Telstra already know where the issues are, there is no point in 
doing a study as Council can provide the required information quickly.  

MH noted the study is not just about identifying the issues but potential solutions 
as well.  

Paul McFadyen (PF) confirmed telecommunications is also being considered for 
the VNI West Social Legacy program.   

GS noted he is looking forward to Transgrid working with Council to provide 
intergenerational legacy for both roads and telecommunications.  

DB explained there is frustration in the room as they have been talking about 
roads and telecommunications since the first CCG meeting. He also noted there 
is a lot of frustration amongst landholders with PMPs in terms of disruption to 
their sheep operations and lambing.  

The Chair asked what would help resolve that frustration.  

DB responded that compensation is needed for disruptions to farming 
operations. For example, he knows someone who is employing a worker to keep 
sheep away from construction over a three-month period. He noted there is 
another landholder where Murray pines and other old trees will be cut down on 
his property and although he has had ecologists there, he has never driven a 



 

7 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West__________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Summary notes 

Transgrid person through to show them. That landholder would like to have a 
Transgrid person go on site. 

GH noted he can look into that and ask ecologists where they have been. During 
construction of the project, the first principle is to avoid and minimise potential 
impacts.  

ACTION: DB to provide contact details for landowner for Transgrid inspection of 
vegetation clearing.  

CB noted landowners are concerned that PMPs may become outdated if 
property operations change. He also stressed that without a site visit from 
Transgrid to mark the line’s location, PMPs lack sufficient detail. 

CM explained that PMPs can be updated if and when business operations 
change. He emphasised that the biggest impact is during construction, and 
PMPs are flexible to reflect revised needs during operational maintenance. 

DB asked about money being given to local council from wind farm developers 
and asked what directives Council get about allocating that money.  

GS explained there are two types of funding for renewable projects. Previously, 
councils received 1% of the CPA value, which gave Murrumbidgee and Edward 
River councils $5 million each from the Yanco Delta wind farm. Murrumbidgee 
directed its share to Jerilderie Hospital. Funding rules have since changed, now 
councils receive annual payments based on megawatt capacity: $1,050/MW for 
wind and $850/MW for solar over 30 years. However, Yanco Delta isn’t eligible 
under the new rules. GS noted that under the old model, Murrumbidgee could 
have received nearly $30 million, potentially addressing local infrastructure 
issues. The council still plans to consult communities on how to use future 
contributions. 

DB noted he had a frustrating conversation with Edward River Council, which 
highlighted that not everyone is hosting transmission lines, so not everyone is 
compensated.  

GS advised the funding guidelines are about providing community support 
through the local Councils, with some funding allocated to neighbourhood 
benefits, broader community benefits and Indigenous landholders. The 
percentage allocation is determined by Council, in consultation with community.  

Secretariat note: Refer to DPHI’s Community Benefit Sharing Guideline 
https://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/sites/default/files/2024-11/benefit-sharing-
guideline.pdf  

The Chair clarified that the new provision of community benefit sharing is an 
ongoing payment, separate to negotiations with Councils about funding roads 
and additional maintenance due to impacts of construction and operations.  

GS confirmed there are multiple, separate funding streams available, such as 
community benefits programs with Transgrid and with EnergyCo, and the 
opportunity to leverage developers for asset infrastructure upgrades where the 
developer seeks access to Council’s assets (eg water filtration plant). 

DB noted a lack of coordination from developers, council and community to look 
at where funding is spent.  

MH noted that EnergyCo’s community consultation is due to take place at the 
end of the year, which will inform the design of the Community and Employment 
Benefit Program. Following this, funding will be available for a range of 
community initiatives and projects. 

https://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/sites/default/files/2024-11/benefit-sharing-guideline.pdf
https://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/sites/default/files/2024-11/benefit-sharing-guideline.pdf


 

8 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West__________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Summary notes 

GS noted that EnergyCo have been told by the community that 
telecommunications is one of the biggest issues, they may decide to spend part 
of that money fixing telecommunications in the South West REZ.   

CB noted the provision under the property acquisition letter includes the ability 
for contractors to “access, cut, trim and remove bushes, grass, undergrowth 
standing in or under transmission lines”. This gives them open slather to remove 
anything in their way.  

GH responded that while they may have that right, Transgrid is very judicious 
about what is removed and how it is removed. Some places may need to have 
significant removal however it will be avoided where possible. The removal of 
vegetation has an impact on Transgrid and the overall project cost as it 
contributes to offset costs. It is in Transgrid’s interest to only remove what is 
necessary. Transgrid are bound by their conditions of approval to minimise and 
avoid biodiversity impacts.   

CM noted it is a standard clause to do something extreme if required to protect 
Transgrid’s assets. Transgrid does not intend  to clear the full 70-metre-wide 
easement.  

RK noted his concern that route selection appears to happen before detailed 
environmental assessments, which he believes is backwards. He argued that 
without site-specific studies, the route may be through an area that would 
potentially cause significant impacts that could have been avoided if 
assessments were done first. 

CM added that the route was refined over 24 months, progressing from a broad 
study area to a defined corridor. He noted it would be impossible to get to the 
granular level of detail across hundreds of kilometres before selecting a route, 
so detailed assessments must come after the corridor is identified. 

GH noted specialists have surveyed the 200-metre-wide corridor where land 
access is provided (about 83% of the alignment).  

JB noted that where significant finds have been identified, Transgrid can make 
minor adjustments within the wider 200m corridor. The 70m easement has 
already shifted within the 200m corridor in response to findings.  

RK asked whether the Aboriginal community have been consulted on about 
where the scarred trees would need to be relocated.  

JB explained the EIS have identified those, there are not many but if they 
impacted, there are mitigation measures outlined in the EIS, including how these 
are salvaged in consultation with Aboriginal groups and how any impacts are 
managed during detailed design refinements.  

RK asked about impact to landholders with removed vegetation and Scope 3 
emissions. If trees are removed, this could be a carbon liability for the 
landholder. When the trees are offset, does the construction company have 
them as offsets or some are left as inset for farmers? Could farmers lose their 
carbon status as a result of tree removal? 

ACTION: Transgrid to consider if there is an impact to carbon status for 
landholders resulting from vegetation removal required for the project.  

CM explained this may be a cost of impact and operation that Transgrid may 
need to consider as part of the compensation under the Land Acquisition (Just 
Terms Compensation) Act 1991.  

RK noted that people need to know to include that as part of their negotiations, 
or to include it as part of their livestock product insurance system. It is difficult for 
landowners to know everything they should be including, for example, the 
potential for fibreglass shards that can go into wool from wind turbines, or 



 

9 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West__________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Summary notes 

potential for PFAS contamination from solar panels / transformers / battery 
storage areas. There are management measures to mitigate that risk, however it 
needs to be addressed in the livestock product insurance system which is 
another cost impacting the process.  

GH noted there is an opportunity to provide formal feedback to DPHI via the EIS 
exhibition process, and to share information to Transgrid that could be 
considered for the expected Amendment Report.  

In discussion about Transgrid’s Concord property, GH noted that we are 
currently looking to remove some build up of rubbish which has been left at the 
Concord property.  

Mick Lalor (ML) is aware of the area and welcomes further discussion with GH.  

ACTION: GH and ML to meet about Concord property.  

Jeanette Crew (JC) noted this is her first meeting. She noted Roger raising the 
issue of scar trees, adding scarring trees is a continuity of cultural practice. 
These scarred trees are young in terms of cultural heritage value, likely not more 
than 500 years old. She explained that the scar is not the significance, but the 
bark taken, as it provides an indication of where and how Indigenous peoples 
occupied places and lived on this country. The significance is also under the 
surface, and the cultural values provide a sign of occupying the land over 
centuries. Jeanette noted discussions in today’s meeting have not recognised 
this cultural value. Australia was not considered to have anything archaeological 
until Mungo Man, which is one of the oldest religious burials in the world (dating 
back approximately 42,000 years). She also added that Western science has 
identified Aboriginal peoples occupying land over 65,000 years, and that there is 
substantial significance in the Deniliquin region. Jeanette noted there needs to 
be another round table with the Aboriginal focus groups about this. Under the 
Native Title Act 1993 there are a lot of discussions around how loss of culture is 
valued, yet there is no compensable dollar value for this loss. Jeanette noted 
that when they come to meetings such as this, Aboriginal people are looking at 
how to value Indigenous culture in the current context.  

3. Project Director’s 
update – Colin Mayer 

CM gave a project update (see slides 14 and 15 of the presentation).  

This included a recap on Transmission Company Victoria announcing its two-
year delay to VNI West in Victoria. CM noted this will likely result in VNI West 
will be delivered in two stages: Stage 1 - the Dinawan Substation and 
Transmission Line 51 network upgrade package, and Stage 2 - the main 
Dinawan to Border transmission line. Transgrid are currently working to 
understand the regulatory and delivery pathways that will assist in realising 
consumer benefits as soon as possible. The delivery of the Substation and Line 
51 upgrade would result in supplying electricity to 800,000 homes from the 
generation of the four SW REZ renewable projects. VNI West is continuing to 
progress with achieving environmental approval for the project as a whole and 
negotiate with landholders on establishing the project easement. We will also 
continue work to identify the timeline for delivery of the transmission line.  

BR noted the media said the alternative for Victoria is 1,300 kilometres of 
existing power line easements are used instead. Is this viable?  

CM responded that while media reported on a ‘Plan B’ alternative for VNI West, 
which would utilise the existing 220kV network in Victoria and repurpose these 
corridors to upgrade to 330kV this is not a practicable scheme. While it is 
plausible to rebuild 220kV to 330kV, you cannot do it within the same easement 
and maintain existing power supply. VicGrid has conducted an independent 
assessment on the ‘Plan B’ alternative, and it is available online: 



 

10 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West_________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Summary notes 

https://www.energy.vic.gov.au/renewable-energy/vicgrid/transmission-projects-
in-victoria 

Relevant documents:  

• Summary of the independent assessment of Plan B (PDF) 

• Plan B review (PDF) 

• Plan B review – Volume 2 information (PDF) 

RK asked about other co-benefits such as cheaper electricity for residents and 
nearby communities, so other landholders that are not directly impacted could 
receive some benefit.  

CM responded the pricing is not something Transgrid can influence.  

MH noted that companies that have an energy generation and retail arm have 
the potential to provide this kind of support as there is inbuilt capacity within their 
business. For generators and transmission companies that do not sell direct to 
customers this may be more difficult to do as it is not in their current business 
model. 

RK asked whether something can be considered from a community benefits 
perspective.  

PM noted that ideas such as microgrids or community batteries could be 
considered. 

NM provided a property update (see slide 17 of the presentation).  

GH provided an environment update (see slide 19 of the presentation) 

PM provided a community investment and benefits update (see slides 21 – 24 of 
the presentation). PM discussed potential for long term infrastructure solutions 
that could combine telecommunications with weather monitoring and fire 
communications, and consideration of local power sources (eg microgrids) which 
would include transferring high voltage power for use at a low voltage level.  

We are also considering some initiatives in the short-term to support 
telecommunications in the region, such as mobile signal repeaters or use of 
Starlink Minis. These would be in place while a longer-term solution is 
developed, as the funding would need to wait for project determination.  

PM noted that final proposals for social legacy initiatives would be submitted to 
the Australian Energy Regulator in Q2 2026 as part of CPA2. In the meantime, 
there are funding streams available for social legacy initiatives via Sustainable 
Communities program and EnergyCo’s community investment. Transgrid has 
spoken with both parties, and understands these funding streams may assist 
communities in the short-term.  

RK noted the Sustainable Communities finished its first round of funding at $15 
million of a total $145 million program. He noted there may be another round in 
September/October, however the issue is short turnaround time for projects. RK 
noted it would be great to bring some of the funding available within Sustainable 
Communities in with what might be available under the VNI West project to 
enable larger and more impactful projects to be developed.   

PM explained the program needs to provide benefits for communities that are 
directly impacted while also demonstrating broader benefit across the area. With 
some ideas we have heard about it may be neccesary to place the program in a 
larger town.  

https://www.energy.vic.gov.au/renewable-energy/vicgrid/transmission-projects-in-victoria
https://www.energy.vic.gov.au/renewable-energy/vicgrid/transmission-projects-in-victoria
https://www.energy.vic.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0023/700844/Summary-of-the-independent-assessment-of-Plan-B.pdf
https://www.energy.vic.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0024/700863/Plan-B-review.pdf
https://www.energy.vic.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0025/700864/Plan-B-review-volume-2-information.pdf


 

11 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West_________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Summary notes 

RK asked whether Transgrid provide in-kind expertise support to local 
organisations, such as engineering assistance to projects being planned in the 
local area, or assistance with a cost benefit analysis of an infrastructure project.  

ACTION: Transgrid to consider whether it can provide community benefit in the 
form of in-kind engineering support for local projects. 

PM noted that Humelink are currently providing community groups with access 
to grant writer support.  

BR noted that the Victorian government are providing a near neighbourhood 
benefit program. BR asked if VNI West would develop something similar via the 
community benefits program. Victoria is setting a precedent, and it is something 
BR is asked about a lot.  

PM noted that it is already being discussed however it is not something that is 
currently provided.   

NM shared information about Transgrid’s aerial network inspection information 
(see slides 26 and 27 of the presentation). The information is available on the 
Transgrid website:  

https://www.transgrid.com.au/community/network-inspections-and-maintenance-
near-you/  

DB asked how frequently the helicopter inspections are carried out. 

NM noted inspections are carried out annually and are used to assess line 
condition and what vegetation management work may need to be done.  

BR asked whether it is possible to contact Transgrid to ask for it to be delayed in 
case you have sheep that are lambing.  

CM noted the inspections are done quickly and at altitude.   

BR noted the altitude would be helpful to include on the map showing network 
inspections scheduled.  

ACTION: Can the network inspections map on the Transgrid website include 
anticipated flight altitude? 

CB noted Transgrid’s VNI West Place Manager contacted him about a month 
ago and were pretty good with their communication, and felt well informed about 
the inspection.  

NM explained that where we had landholder details, we were able to make direct 
contact. The aim of this map was to disseminate information more broadly, 
particularly for landholders where Transgrid may not have contact details.  

DB noted he does not get phone call updates despite having power lines 
through his place. This may be because the line is alongside an open road and 
likely on Crown Land.  

4. EIS orientation and 
overview 

JB provided overview of the EIS including the information available and the 
structure of the document (see pages 29-37 of the presentation).  

NM then presented an EIS and CCG feedback ready reckoner, which identified 
feedback raised by the CCG and the relevant sections of the EIS where the 
feedback is addressed (see slides 39-43 of the presentation).  

JB provided an overview of the Digital EIS to show CCG members how they can 
navigate the interactive tool (see slides 45-49 of the presentation).  

5. EIS engagement 
schedule 

NM presented the EIS engagement schedule for the upcoming exhibition period 
(see slides 51 and 52 of the presentation).  

https://www.transgrid.com.au/community/network-inspections-and-maintenance-near-you/
https://www.transgrid.com.au/community/network-inspections-and-maintenance-near-you/


 

12 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West_________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Summary notes 

RK noted the Barham Farmer’s Market no longer operates. NM advised this 
would be removed from the schedule, and thanked RK for the advisory. 

CB asked if amendments to the EIS would automatically go into place after the 
exhibition of the EIS.  

JB noted at the end of the exhibition period, all submissions will be collated, and 
Transgrid will prepare a Submissions Report. If a submission puts forward a 
design change, or if Transgrid already knows of a design change through the 
landholder engagement, then these would be collated and addressed in an 
Amendment Report. The Amendment Report has a similar structure to the EIS, 
but is smaller, as it will focus on the changes to be incorporated into the project 
following publication of the EIS. Both the Amendment Report and Submissions 
Report are tabled with DPHI, with any changes assessed by DPHI in conjunction 
with the entirety of the EIS.  

CG asked whether the Amendment Report needs to go back to public exhibition.   

JB advised that this will depend on DPHI’s view on the significance of the 
changes in the Amendment Report, and if DPHI is satisfied with the level of 
community, stakeholder and landholder consultation conducted by Transgrid in 
developing the project.  

RK asked whether Victoria was more progressed than NSW in terms of their 
project.  

GH noted Victoria are significantly behind NSW.   

NM noted the difference in approach to route selection between Transgrid (for 
NSW) and Transmission Company Victoria (VIC). Transgrid consulted on a 
broad study area (50km), refined to a preferred corridor (5km-10km), refined to a 
preferred route (1km-2km), and refined to a preferred transmission line corridor 
(200m). In this same time, TCV displayed a broader corridor and then 
announced its 70-metre-wide easement at the same time Transgrid announced 
its 200-metre-wide corridor. While it may seem TCV is ahead (70m is less than 
200m), it is behind Transgrid (the EIS for the NSW section is about to go on 
public display; TCV continues to develop its Environmental Effects Statement – 
EES).  

6. Wrap up and close NM noted the next meeting is scheduled 18 September, which is after the EIS 
exhibition period, and will provide a wrap-up of the EIS exhibition period. 

The subsequent meeting is scheduled for 4 December which will discuss EIS 
submissions and provide progress update on responses to submissions.  

 

 

Action items 

Agenda item Description Person responsible  Status 

1. Welcome, 
introductions and 
housekeeping and 
review of previous 
minutes 

Transgrid to investigate whether a 
mechanism exists to direct biodiversity 
offsets funds to a specific region.   

Geoff Hudson  

 Transgrid to consider opportunities to 
indicate proposed tower locations to 
landholders. 

Nathan Menser  



 

13 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West_________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Agenda item Description Person responsible  Status 

Transgrid to develop broader 
communications material on the overall 
functioning of the electricity network and the 
how Transgrid’s major transmission projects 
fit into it.   

Nathan Menser  

Transgrid to review approach taken with 
landholder regarding construction compound. 

Nathan Menser  

DB to provide contact details for landowner 
for Transgrid inspection of vegetation 
clearing. 

Geoff Hudson  

Transgrid to consider if there is an impact to 
carbon status for landholders resulting from 
vegetation removal required for the project.  

Ben Doran 

Geoff Hudson 

 

GH and ML to meet about Concord property. Geoff Hudson  

3. Project Director’s 
update 

Transgrid to consider whether it can provide 
community benefit in the form of in-kind 
engineering support for local projects. 

Paul McFadyen  

Can the network inspections map on the 
Transgrid website include anticipated flight 
altitude? 

Nathan Menser  

 

Resources 

Item Link 

Land Acquisition (Just 
Terms Compensation) Act 
1991 

https://legislation.nsw.gov.au/view/whole/html/inforce/current/act-1991-022 

 

VNI West CPA1 
Determination 

https://www.aer.gov.au/documents/aer-determination-transgrid-vni-west-stage-
1-early-works-contingent-project-may-2024 (PDF 648Kb) 

VNI West Contingent 
Application (CPA) 1 

https://www.aer.gov.au/documents/transgrid-vni-west-cpa-stage-1-a1-principal-
application-31-january-2024 (PDF 1.28MB) 

Preferred Route Report https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/5whhsuo2/vni-west-preferred-route-report-
march-2024.pdf (PDF 4.7MB) 

Draft Route Report https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/1vbfkt2d/vni_west_draft_route_report-29-
january-2024.pdf (PDF 23.3MB) 

Preferred Corridor Report https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/0wue2k4h/vni-west-preferred-corridor-
report-october-2023.pdf (PDF 3.66 MB) 

Draft Corridor Report https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/af5d3pry/ps135761-env-rep-001-
reva_corridor_rpt_v2-2.pdf  (PDF 39.34 MB) 

Regulatory Investment Test 
for Transmission 
Documents 

https://www.transgrid.com.au/projects-innovation/vni-west#Regulatory-
Investment-Test-for-Transmission--RIT-T- 

RIT-T Consultation 
documents 

https://aemo.com.au/initiatives/major-programs/vni-west/stakeholder-
consultation  

State Significant 
Infrastructure  

https://www.planningportal.nsw.gov.au/development-and-assessment/state-
significant-infrastructure  

https://legislation.nsw.gov.au/view/whole/html/inforce/current/act-1991-022
https://www.aer.gov.au/documents/aer-determination-transgrid-vni-west-stage-1-early-works-contingent-project-may-2024
https://www.aer.gov.au/documents/aer-determination-transgrid-vni-west-stage-1-early-works-contingent-project-may-2024
https://www.aer.gov.au/documents/transgrid-vni-west-cpa-stage-1-a1-principal-application-31-january-2024
https://www.aer.gov.au/documents/transgrid-vni-west-cpa-stage-1-a1-principal-application-31-january-2024
https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/5whhsuo2/vni-west-preferred-route-report-march-2024.pdf
https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/5whhsuo2/vni-west-preferred-route-report-march-2024.pdf
https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/1vbfkt2d/vni_west_draft_route_report-29-january-2024.pdf
https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/1vbfkt2d/vni_west_draft_route_report-29-january-2024.pdf
https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/0wue2k4h/vni-west-preferred-corridor-report-october-2023.pdf
https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/0wue2k4h/vni-west-preferred-corridor-report-october-2023.pdf
https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/af5d3pry/ps135761-env-rep-001-reva_corridor_rpt_v2-2.pdf
https://www.transgrid.com.au/media/af5d3pry/ps135761-env-rep-001-reva_corridor_rpt_v2-2.pdf
https://www.transgrid.com.au/projects-innovation/vni-west#Regulatory-Investment-Test-for-Transmission--RIT-T-
https://www.transgrid.com.au/projects-innovation/vni-west#Regulatory-Investment-Test-for-Transmission--RIT-T-
https://aemo.com.au/initiatives/major-programs/vni-west/stakeholder-consultation
https://aemo.com.au/initiatives/major-programs/vni-west/stakeholder-consultation
https://www.planningportal.nsw.gov.au/development-and-assessment/state-significant-infrastructure
https://www.planningportal.nsw.gov.au/development-and-assessment/state-significant-infrastructure


 

14 | Meeting Minutes | Victoria NSW Interconnector West_________________________________________________________________________  

Official Official Official Official Official Official Official 

Item Link 

Assure Programs 

 

The service is confidential and anonymous. Transgrid does not receive any 
information about who uses these services. 

There is no cost to landowners in accessing this service. 

How to make an appointment 

You can book an appointment by calling Assure on 1800 808 374, or you 
can request an appointment online. 

When you call Assure, please let the team know that you are from Transgrid, 
and the business unit is “Landowners.” This will ensure you are able to get the 
support you need. You are not expected to provide the reason – this is a 
conversation saved for your session with the psychologist. 

In addition, the NSW Centre for Property Acquisition has free support and 
counselling services available to any landowners affected by an acquisition. For 
more information, call 1300 029 146 or visit their website. 

 

Attachments 

Attachment Format 

Glossary PDF 

Transgrid Slides PDF 

 

Next meeting 

Date: Thursday, 18 September 2025 Time: 10:00am – 1:00pm 

Location: TBC Chairperson: Brendan Blakeley 

 

https://assureprograms.com.au/book-an-appointment/
https://www.nsw.gov.au/housing-and-construction/property-acquisition/support-for-you/property-acquisition-support-line

